
High Peak Borough Council

THE EXECUTIVE - INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

Date: Tuesday, 14 July 2020

6 July 2020

PART 1
1. Pavement Licences (Pages 3 - 8)

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Individual Executive Decision

14 July 2020

TITLE: Pavement Licences

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sloman - Executive Councillor for 
Housing and Licensing

CONTACT OFFICER: Alicia E Patterson 
Head of Environmental Health 

WARDS INVOLVED: All wards

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 This report explains a new licensing requirement for pavement cafes that is 
proposed by Government to assist businesses in the hospitality trade with the 
economic recovery.  The report sets out a first draft of the processes that 
could be applied by the Council to consider applications and recommends a 
scheme of delegation for the issuing and refusal of licences, and for the fee 
that should be charged in respect of these new licences.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Borough Council adopts a fee of £100 for the determination of 
applications for Pavement licences.

2.2 That the scheme of delegation detailed at section 7.9 of this report is adopted.

2.3 That with the agreement of the Chair of the Community Select Committee the 
decision be exempt from call-in due to the urgent nature of the report.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report sets out the Council’s proposed approach to new powers which it 
expects to receive in the coming days following the likely approval by 
Parliament of the Business and Planning Bill.

3.2 The Bill makes provision for the granting of Pavement licences to allow pubs, 
cafes and restaurants to sell food and drink to their customers through the use 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



of outdoor furniture on the highway, adjacent to their premises. The intention 
of the Bill is to support hospitality businesses recover from the economic 
impact of Covid-19. 

3.3 The report sets out the proposed approach to be taken by the Council in 
determining applications which it receives for Pavement licences; proposes a 
fee to be charged for the determination process; and proposes delegations to 
allow lawful decision making by the Council.

3.4 As the Bill is likely to be enacted in the next few weeks it is crucial that 
appropriate arrangements are in place to enable the Council to immediately 
deal with any applications under the new legislation. Consultation has been 
undertaken, therefore, with the Chair of the Community Select Committee, 
who has confirmed that, in light of the urgent nature of the report, it may be 
considered exempt from call-in under the Select Committee Procedure Rules.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Aim 3 - Protect and create jobs by supporting economic growth, development 
and regeneration.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 This is a new statutory function for the Council and a process must be agreed 
for determination of applications received. There is discretion offered to 
Councils as to whether, and at what level, to set the fee for determination of 
such applications.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

The appropriate enforcement of licensing legislation in partnership 
with relevant agencies is a key tool in assuring the maintenance of 
community safety.

6.2 Workforce

Additional resources are required to process, administer and 
enforce this new licence and as such a fee has been suggested. 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations

There are no financial considerations to consider, all costs will be 
likely to be met by the proposed fee structure. 

Page 4



6.5 Legal

As considered in the report, this will form part of the statutory 
licensing provision of the Council.

6.6 Climate Change

No issues identified.

6.7 Consultation

Given the timescales for introduction of this legislation no 
consultation has been carried out by the Council, however, an 
appeal provision for refusal of a licence applications has been 
included in the proposed approach despite not being a requirement 
of the Bill.

6.8 Risk Assessment

No issues identified.

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pavement-
licences-draft-guidance/draft-guidance-pavement-
licences-outdoor-seating-proposal

Alicia E Patterson
Head of Environmental Health 
Alicia.patterson@highpeak.gov.uk

7. Detail

7.1 On 25 June 2020 the Government announced new measures to assist 
businesses with economic recovery following the easing of Covid-19 lockdown 
restrictions.  In particular, Government outlined new laws and guidance to 
support pubs, cafes and restaurants through simpler licensing processes for 
outdoor seating for these premises.

7.2 This announcement was followed with the publication of the Business and 
Planning Bill, which sets out in detail how Government initially sees the 
measures being implemented.  Although this is yet to be translated in law, the 
Bill makes it clear that the new system will be operated by District and 
Borough Councils in two tier local authority areas.  At the present time, the 
limited pavement café licensing that is undertaken in Derbyshire is operated 
by Derbyshire County Council.

7.3 The announcement, Bill and subsequent Guidance all make it clear that 

6.4

Page 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pavement-licences-draft-guidance/draft-guidance-pavement-licences-outdoor-seating-proposal
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pavement-licences-draft-guidance/draft-guidance-pavement-licences-outdoor-seating-proposal
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pavement-licences-draft-guidance/draft-guidance-pavement-licences-outdoor-seating-proposal


Government sees this measure as a major plank in their plans to facilitate the 
economic recovery of businesses in the hospitality sector and there is a very 
apparent expectation that Councils should assist, rather than hinder, the 
process.  This represents a significant shift in emphasis, from keeping certain 
businesses closed or allowing only limited operations, to assisting them with 
their reopening by enabling a new way of working.  It is recognised that this 
may not accord with all residents’ wishes in every case.  Nevertheless it is 
necessary for the Council to put itself in a position where it can begin to 
operate the new powers as soon as they are introduced.  This report sets out 
the basics of how the system is expected to operate, sets a fee for the service 
and suggests a scheme of delegation to enable the system to work effectively, 
within the very tight timescales that councils will be allowed to process and 
determine applications.

7.4 The Bill sets out the process that must be followed in relation to processing an 
application.  To simplify, an application must contain information set out in the 
Bill, including specifying the area of land, the type of equipment to be placed 
on it, and the days it will be used.   Once the information is submitted to the 
local authority the authority has 10 working days from the day after the 
application is made (excluding public holidays) to determine the application. It 
must also consult the Highways Authority and any other person it considers to 
be appropriate before determining the application. The entire process consists 
of 5 working days for public consultation, and then 5 working days to consider 
and determine the application after the consultation period.

7.5 If a determination is not made within these tight timescales then the licence is 
deemed to be granted.

7.6 The maximum fee that may be charged for this service is £100, but local 
authorities are free to charge a lesser amount, or to waive the fee, if they 
wish.

7.7 In preparing for this new responsibility the Council’s Licensing team is having 
to set up whole new process in a very short space of time, as are many other 
district and boroughs councils.  Whilst recognising that the Council is there to 
support economic recovery, this work does not come without a significant cost 
in officer time.  Therefore, the officer recommendation is that the fee for High 
Peak Borough Council is set at £100, in order to recover as much of the cost 
of administering the new system as possible. Under the current pavement 
licensing scheme Derbyshire County Council charges £300.00 as a minimum 
fee for up to 6 seats and an additional £50.00 thereafter. 

7.8 Administering the new system is clearly a licensing task and sits most 
naturally within our Licensing team, part of Environmental Health.  It is 
proposed that the new systems and processes required to operate this new 
type of license are developed by the Senior and Licensing Officers, in 
consultation with the Head of Environmental Health, allowing for the short 
notice that has been given for their development.  Whilst recognising that 
Members will naturally be interested in the finer detail of issues such as 
consultation, officers need to be able to respond flexibly to the new 

Page 6



arrangements and develop systems that work for all parties.  In doing so, they 
will consult with colleagues from around the county, through a specific group 
of licensing and environmental health professionals that has been formed for 
this purpose.  More detail on the arrangements will be available for Members 
in due course.

7.9 In addition, in order to enable this provision to work effectively and efficiently it 
is necessary for officers to obtain delegated authority to issue or refuse 
licences and to undertake enforcement actions.  A recommended scheme of 
delegation is set out below:

Section Provision Delegation Appeals against 
refusal of 
application

Clause 3, 
Business and 
Planning Bill

Issue or refusal 
of Pavement 
Café licences

- Executive Director 
(People)

- Head of 
Environmental Health

Licensing Sub-
Committee

Clause 4, 
Business and 
Planning Bill

Determine 
duration of 
Pavement Café 
Licences

- Executive Director 
(People)

- Head of 
Environmental Health

Licensing Sub-
Committee

Clause 5, 
Business and 
Planning Bill

Impose 
conditions on a 
Pavement Café 
Licence

- Executive Director 
(People)

- Head of 
Environmental Health

Licensing Sub-
Committee

Clause 6, 
Business and 
Planning Bill

Service of 
breach of 
conditions 
notice in 
relation to a 
Pavement Café 
licence

- Executive Director 
(People)

- Head of 
Environmental Health

Licensing Sub-
Committee

Clause 6, 
Business and 
Planning Bill

Revoke 
Pavement Café 
Licence

- Executive Director 
(People)

- Head of 
Environmental Health

Licensing Sub-
Committee

Clause 6, 
Business and 
Planning Bill

Recover costs 
for action taken 
in respect of a 
breach of 
conditions in 
relation to a 
Pavement Café 
licence

- Executive Director 
(People)

- Head of 
Environmental Health

7.10 As the Bill is likely to be enacted in the next few weeks it is crucial that 

Page 7



appropriate arrangements are in place to enable the Council to immediately 
deal with any applications under the new legislation. Consultation has been 
undertaken, therefore, with the Chair of the Community Select Committee, 
who has confirmed that, in light of the urgent nature of the report, it may be 
considered exempt from call-in under the Select Committee Procedure Rules.

Page 8


	Agenda
	1 Pavement Licences

